
Planning Commission                   City Hall 
             City of Sandusky, Ohio 44870
         
  
                         December 18th, 2019 
          1ST FLOOR CONFERENCE ROOM 

     240 COLUMBUS AVE 
                                                                 4:30 P.M. 

AGENDA 
 

1. Meeting called to order – Roll Call 
 

 
2. Approval of the minutes from November 26th, 2019. 

 
 
  New Business 
 

3. AN APPLICATION FOR AN AMENDMENT TO THE ZONING MAP HAS BEEN FILED BY 
MCGOOKEY PROPERTIES LLC TO EXPAND THE COVE DISTRICT TRANSIENT OVERLAY DISTRICT TO 
623, 627, 629, AND 631 EAST WASHINGTON STREET (PARCELS 56-01177.000, 56-00647.000, 56-
01241.000, 56-00912.000). 
 

 
4. Meeting Adjourned 

 
 

NEXT MEETING: January 22nd, 2020 at 4:30pm. 
 
Please notify staff at least 2 days in advance of the meeting if you cannot attend.  Thank you. 



1 
 

Planning Commission 
November 26th, 2019 

Meeting Minutes 
 
 

Meeting called to order: 
The Chairman called the meeting to order at 5:03pm. The following members were present: Mr. David 
Miller, Mr. Dave Waddington, Chairman Mike Zuilhof, Mr. Peter McGory, Mr. Jim Jackson, and Mr. Joe 
Galea.  Mr. Greg Voltz represented the Planning Department. Mr. Trevor Hayberger represented the 
Law Department. 
 
Approval of minutes from the September 25th meeting: 
Mr. McGory moved to approve the minutes. Mr. Waddington seconded the motion. With no further 
discussion, all in favor to approve. 
 
New business: 
Mr. Zuilhof stated that next on the agenda was an application for Downtown Design Review Certificate 
of Appropriateness for Decorative Exterior Flood Lighting to the Cedar Fair Resort and Attractions 
Management Facility of Bowling Green State University, at 250 E. Market St., submitted by Lynn Harlan 
on behalf of Resort School LLC. 
Mr. Voltz explained that the application is solely for the light fixtures to be used above the first floor of 
the building and up. He said that the proposed height of the building is 58 feet. The proposed fixtures 
are meant to highlight only the building and should not affect the adjacent buildings or shine off directly 
into the sky. The proposed 31 light fixtures will be mounted between the first floor and second floor of 
the building and will shine the full height of the building. The lighting is meant to have red, green, and 
blue colors available, to shine on different holidays. The application is a common practice worldwide 
and is a great way to highlight the architectural elements of the building. Staff does believe this will 
create a sense of vibrancy towards this side of the central business district and will draw downtown 
users. This will also add a sense of safety to the area. The lighting is only going to be installed on the 
eastern and northern sides of the building. Staff does recommend granting of the Certificate of 
Appropriateness. 
Lynn Harlan representing Resort School LLC, stated that he has used this type of lighting before. He 
stated that the lighting will set less than a foot off the building and will die off at the parapet level. It will 
not shine into the school. The owner will be able to change the color of the lighting for holidays if 
desired. The fixtures cost $3,000 a piece. 
Mr. Miller stated that he is in favor of the look and understands the potential to add vibrancy 
downtown, but asked what the affect is when inside the building. Will this prevent people inside from 
looking out and will the light shine inside the building. 
Mr. Harlan stated that the lights will wash the walls in between the windows, so there should be no 
effect on the inside. 
Mr. McGory stated that he likes concept in a softer version where the building doesn’t glow. He said he 
is not so sure he would like the lights moving, if that is an option that the owner would be allowed to do. 
Mr. Harlan stated that would depend on what the owner wanted to do, but it could be allowed to be 
done. 



2 
 

Mr. Jackson asked if any of the rooms are going to be dorm rooms. 
Mr. Harlan stated that the building is going to consist of classrooms, offices, common areas, and 
apartments. He said that they are hoping that the students will live there, but the apartments will be 
open to the public also.  
Mr. Jackson asked if there is going to be a time limit for when the lights will be on. 
Mr. Harlan stated that most people will turn the lights off at midnight.  
Mr. Zuilhof asked if this would be a safety issue for traffic if the lights are bright and moving. 
Mr. Voltz stated that the Public Arts and Culture Commission discussed this and thought that if the 
commission wanted to put a condition on this having the lights remain static, that they would like for 
the owner to be able to have the ability for moving lights on special occasions. 
Mr. McGory asked if the lights come with a dimmer. 
Mr. Harlan stated yes. 
Mr. McGory asked if there is any ability for further input after the application has been approved, or is it 
a done deal once approved. 
Ms. Byington stated that once the commission makes a decision, we cannot go back and change things. 
So if the commission wants to set parameters, she advised to set them and then the owner could come 
back asking for the parameters to be modified. 
Mr. McGory asked what would happen if a neighbor stated that the lights are too bright and asked for 
the owner to dim them a little bit. 
Ms. Byington stated that if the light was too bright and obtrusive, that might be a nuisance and 
something the city could follow up on, but staff are hoping to be able to work with the owner and find 
something everyone can agree upon. 
Mr. Hayberger stated that he agrees with Ms. Byington that if the commission wants to set parameters 
that they should do it now. 
Mr. McGory stated that he wouldn’t mind the lights being on all night as long as they are softly lit. 
Mr. Galea asked if there is any data on the likelihood of the lighting shining into the sky. 
Mr. Voltz stated that the glare should not shine off into the night sky, but there will always be reflection. 
He said that he has tried to find data on this, but all of the studies he found stated that they need more 
research on this topic. 
Mr. Zuilhof asked if the law director could give any guidance on wording that would cover excessive 
brightness. 
Mr. Hayberger stated that the commission could state that the light shall not cause a public nuisance 
Mr. Zuilhof asked how about stating that the light shall not be unnecessarily bright or cause a nuisance. 
Mr. Hayberger said that would be fine. 
Mr. McGory asked if commission should set a time limit or just hope that it all works out. He also asked 
if commission should allow movement or not. 
Mr. Zuilhof asked commission about approving the application with the following conditions: 1) That the 
display be static except for during special events, at which time the display would again become static at 
11:00pm, except on New Year’s Eve it may be moving until 1:00am on New Year’s Day, and 2) The 
illuminous intensity shall not be excessively bright or cause a nuisance. 
Mr. Miller stated so moved. 
Mr. Harlan asked if he could ask a question. 



3 
 

With lack of a second on the motion, Mr. Zuilhof asked Mr. Harlan what his question is. 
Mr. Harlan asked if multiple colors would be allowed. 
Mr. Zuilhof stated that with that motion multiple colors would be fine. 
Mr. McGory stated that he would feel more comfortable if commission could approve the application 
and somehow reserve jurisdiction to address any complaints. 
Mr. Hayberger stated that commission would lose jurisdiction unless there would be a nuisance 
complaint that would be handled through the Housing Appeals Board. 
Mr. Galea stated that he does not see a problem with movement of the lights and he does not see 
lighting coming in the windows as a problem either. Mr. Galea stated that he would remove the 
condition of the lights remaining static. 
Mr. McGory stated that with all of the details that he has heard, he would like to see all of that in 
writing, so that he is clear on what he is approving. 
Mr. Zuilhof asked if commission wanted staff to work out something more specific. 
Mr. McGory stated that would be difficult for them. He them motioned to approve the application 
subject to use and limitations yet to be determined within the next two months, so that the only thing 
that would result would be perhaps the owner could not use everything that those lights are capable of. 
Mr. Miller seconded the motion. 
Mr. Zuilhof stated that he would feel better knowing what is being approved as it sounds like what is 
being approved is yet to be determined. 
Mr. McGory stated that it is saying that the owner can put in everything that they are asking to, but that 
commission will potentially put some limitations on what they can do with the lights. 
Mr. Galea asked staff if there are any ordinances or limitations in Cleveland for this sort of thing. 
Mr. Voltz stated that he could not find any ordinances regarding this. 
Mr. Harlan stated that there are none. 
Ms. Byington stated that maybe something else to be considered is approving the application now as 
static only and then amending the approval through a second application for motion, to allow staff to 
research that. 
Mr. Galea moved to amend the pending motion to include the conditions that approval to delete that 
this will be determined at a future date and replace it with that approval will be for static display only 
and subject to that it will not be unreasonably bright and will not create a nuisance and there will not be 
prejudice to future applications regarding those conditions. 
Mr. McGory seconded the motion. 
With no further discussion, all members were in favor. 
All members were in favor to approve the amended motion. 
 
Old Business: 
Ms. Byington stated that President Murray wanted Planning Commission to pass along an article in 
regard to Dollar Stores and how they are affecting communities across the county in regard to lack of 
fresh fruit.  
Mr. Waddington stated that he thinks there is a need for Dollar Generals, as many people do not have 
the ability to get to the bigger grocery stores. 



4 
 

Mr. Jackson stated that many people do not have access to fresh produce. He said that when he was in 
Orlando last winter, a farmers market was forced into some of the areas where fresh produce was not 
available. He stated that we may not have that problem in Sandusky, but there is definitely a problem in 
some of the bigger cities. 
Mr. Galea stated that he would not be in favor of any zoning that eliminated the ability of a store like 
Dollar General to operate as they do provide a service to the community. He stated that he thinks the 
role of the Planning Commission would be to say that there may be parts of our community where we 
would not want a Dollar Store or a chain retailer in general because it would not fit a specific 
neighborhood or might compete with a local independent business. He also stated that it would be a 
good idea to get some input from the Economic Development Department to guide any decision 
making. 
 
Mr. Zuilhof stated that next on the agenda is to discuss members whose terms are expiring at the end of 
this year.  
Clerk for the Planning Commission, Kristen Barone, stated that Mr. Jackson and Mr. McGory both have 
terms expiring 12/31/19. 
Mr. Jackson and Mr. McGory stated that they would both like to be reappointed. 
Ms. Barone then asked the commission members if they were okay with clerk emailing them the agenda 
like always and then having a printed copy available to them the day of the meeting, instead of mailing it 
out since some members are not getting the packets in the mail or get them with not much notice. 
All members were okay with that. 
 
Next meeting is Wednesday, December 18th at 4:30pm. 
 
Meeting Adjourned: 
Mr. McGory moved to adjourn the meeting. Mr. Waddington seconded the motion. All members were 
in favor and the meeting was adjourned at 6:12pm. 
 
Approved: 
 
 
 
___________________________    ___________________________  

Kristen Barone, Clerk     Michael Zuilhof, Chairman 

 
 
 
 



  

  

PLANNING COMMISSION 
REPORT 

APPLICATION FOR ZONING 
MAP AMENDMENT TO  

623, 627, 629, AND 631 E WASHINGTON STREET 
(PARCELS 56-01177.000, 56-00647.000, 56-

01241.000, 56-00912.000)  
 

Reference Number: PRZ19-0003 

Date of Report: December 6, 2019  

Report Author: Greg Voltz, Planner 

 

  

C I T Y  O F  S A N D U S K Y ,  O H I O  
D E P A R T M E N T  O F  

P L A N N I N G  
 



 

 

2 

 
 
 
 

City of Sandusky, Ohio 
Planning Commission Report 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

Daniel J. McGookey has submitted an application for an Amendment to the Zone Map.  The properties 
located at 623, 627, 629, and 631 E Washington Street, are currently zoned as “R2F” Two-Family 
Residential.  The applicant is proposing to rezone the properties to expand the adjacent Cove District 
Transient Overlay District. The following information is relevant to this application: 

Applicant:   McGookey Properties, LLC 
     225 Meigs Street 
     Sandusky, Ohio 44870 
 
Authorized Agent: Daniel L. McGookey 
     225 Meigs Street 
     Sandusky, Ohio 44870 
 
Site Location:  623, 627, 629, and 631 E Washington Street 
 
Zoning:    “R2F” Two-Family Residential 
 
Adjacent Zoning  
& Uses:    North: “DBD” Downtown Business District 
     East: “DBD” Downtown  Business District 
     South: “R2F” Two-Family Residential 
     West: “R2F” Two-Family Residential 
 
Proposed Zoning: Expanding the Cove District Transient Overlay District underlying zoning 
     will remain “R2F” – Two-Family Residential      
 
Existing Uses:  Residential 
 
Applicable Plans & Regulations:  City of Sandusky Comprehensive Plan 
         Sandusky Zoning Code Chapters 
         Chapter 1113 Amendments to the Zone Map & Zoning Code 
         Chapter 1129 Residential Districts 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 3 

SITE D ESCRIPTION 

The subject properties are located along East Washington Street, just one parcel west of Meigs Street.  
The properties have been occupied single family residential units. The subject property is surrounded 
by residential, an office, and micro-brewery.  It also sits adjacent to the current Cove District Transient 
Overly District.  

A picture of the properties along with a location map are found below.   

 
 

623, 627, 629, and 631 E Washington Street  

 



 

 

4 

Zone Map – Parcels Indicated 

 

   

 

 

DIVISION OF PLANNING COMMENT S 

 
As the Commission may recall a few of these properties were part of a rezoning application in 2015.  
At that time the applicant was requesting to rezone the parcels to “DBD” Downtown Business.  For 



 

 5 

various reason Staff and the Planning Commission agreed that the properties fronting Meigs Street 
should remain “R2F” Two-Family Residential.   
 
Since that rezoning application there has been a lot of changes in the way the City of Sandusky 
handles transient rentals and there has also been the creation of the Transient Rental Overlay 
District. The Cove District Transient Overlay District sits adjacent to these properties to the 
southeast, and the adjacent properties to the east are also now zoned Downtown Business which 
permits Transient Rental.   
 
The City adopted the Bicentennial Vision/ Comprehensive Plan, which outlines a citywide 
development plan for the next ten years.  Following the approval of this plan, it is the responsibility 
of Planning Staff to review the areas of the city that will need to be rezoned to carry out the vision of 
this plan. Within this specific area, the Comprehensive Plan doesn’t have a recommendation for new 
uses, however the Plan does mention that Washington is a significant east-west connector and Staff 
believes that transient rental within this area could assist in maintaining desirable housing along the 
street.     
 
The proposed zoning amendment does address a few priorities in the Bicentennial Vision as well.   
Livable City:  

• Implement housing programs to maintain supply & stimulate demand 
o Increase Investment in Diverse Housing Types through New Incentive Programs: 

Support the development and rehabilitation of a variety of housing types that meet 
the needs of current and future residents including: rehabilitated homes, 
townhomes, new in-fill single family housing, upper floor condos and lofts, 
affordable housing, senior housing, permanent supportive housing, assisted living, 
and short-term transient rental. 

 
Chapter 1113 Amendments, of the Zoning Code states that the Zoning Map may be amended 
periodically in order to keep it abreast of new zoning techniques, as well as when the following 
general conditions arise: 

(1) Whenever a general hardship prevails throughout a given district; 
(2) Whenever a change occurs in land use, transportation, or other sociological trends, 

either within or surrounding the community; and 
(3) Whenever extensive developments are proposed that do not comply but would be in the 

public interest. 
 

Understanding the property is adjacent to a zoning district that permits transient rental in Downtown 
Business, and sits adjacent to the existing Transient Overly District, Staff would support the zoning 
amendment.    

 
Lastly, if the applicant desires these properties to be utilized for transient rental, they each would 
need their own transient rental application and be thoroughly reviewed by the Code Enforcement 
Department and the Planning Department. 
 
 
 

 



 

 

6 

ENGINEERING STAFF COMMENT S 

The City Engineer has reviewed the proposed zoning amendment and has no objections.  
 

BUILDING STAFF COMMENT S 

The City Building Official has reviewed the proposed zone map amendment and has no objections.  
 

POLICE DEPARTMENT COMMENT S 

The City Police Chief has reviewed the proposed zone map amendment and has no objections. 
 

FIRE DEPARTMENT COMMENT S 

The City Fire Chief has reviewed the proposed zone map amendment and has no objections 
 

CONCLUSION/RECOMMENDATION 

In conclusion, Planning Staff recommends approval of the proposed amendment to the Zone Map 
for the subject properties. The Bicentennial Vision supports programs and thoughtful zoning 
changes that encourage hospitality and that increase investment in diverse housing types, and as 
being a major east-west connector this could help incentivize investment in these houses.   












































	PC 12.18.19 agenda
	December 18th, 2019
	1ST FLOOR CONFERENCE ROOM
	4:30 P.M.

	PC 11.26.19 draft
	Planning Commission
	November 26th, 2019
	Meeting Minutes

	ADPC78E.tmp
	background information
	Site Description
	division of planning comments
	ENGINEERING staff comments
	BUILDING staff comments
	pOLICE DEPARTMENT comments
	Fire DEPARTMENT comments
	conclusion/recommendation




